
Meeting Minutes 
May 9, 2023 
 

1 

 

MINUTES OF MECKLENBURG COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA  
BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 

 
 
The Board of Commissioners of Mecklenburg County, North Carolina, met in Budget/Public Policy 
Session in Conference Center Room 267 on the 2nd floor of the Charlotte-Mecklenburg 
Government Center located at 600 East Fourth Street, Charlotte, North Carolina at 2:30 p.m. on 
Tuesday, May 9, 2023.  
 
 

ATTENDANCE 
 
 
Present:  Chair George Dunlap and Commissioners  

Leigh Altman, Patricia “Pat” Cotham, Arthur Griffin, 
Mark Jerrell, Laura J Meier,  
and Susan Rodriguez-McDowell 
County Manager Dena R. Diorio 
County Attorney Tyrone C. Wade 
Clerk to the Board Kristine M. Smith 
Deputy Clerk to the Board Arlissa Eason 

 
 
Absent:  Vice Chair Elaine Powell 

Commissioner Vilma D. Leake  
 
NOTE:  Commissioner Rodriguez-McDowell was absent until noted in the minutes. 
 
CALL TO ORDER  

 
 

The meeting was called to order by Chair Dunlap, followed by introductions and the Pledge of 
Allegiance to the Flag. 
 
 
23-0304 CENTRAL PIEDMONT COMMUNITY COLLEGE FY2024 BUDGET REQUEST  
 
The Board received a request for FY2024 funding from Central Piedmont Community College 
President (CPCC). 



Meeting Minutes 
May 9, 2023 
 

2 

 

Dr. Kandi Deitemeyer, President of Central Piedmont Community College and Mike Whiteman, 
Vice President of Finance and Administrative Services, gave the presentation. 
  
Background: As part of the annual budget process, CPCC submits a funding request to the 
County for consideration. Representatives from CPCC will present the FY2024 funding request to 
the Board of County Commissioners. 
  

 



Meeting Minutes 
May 9, 2023 
 

3 

 

 

 
 



Meeting Minutes 
May 9, 2023 
 

4 

 

 



Meeting Minutes 
May 9, 2023 
 

5 

 

 
 



Meeting Minutes 
May 9, 2023 
 

6 

 

 
 



Meeting Minutes 
May 9, 2023 
 

7 

 

 



Meeting Minutes 
May 9, 2023 
 

8 

 

 
 



Meeting Minutes 
May 9, 2023 
 

9 

 

 
 
 
 



Meeting Minutes 
May 9, 2023 
 

10 

 

 
 
Comments 
 
Commissioner Rodriguez-McDowell joined the meeting at 2:38 pm.  
 
Commissioner Altman thanked them for their presentation. She said she would like to hear more 
about the honors program and the 12 college and career counselors they brought onboard.  She 
asked what the $250,000 wall fan was. Mr. Whiteman said the fans brought air from outside into 
the labs, and they were seeing failure with the current fan. He said it would be more costly if they 
waited.  
  
Commissioner Altman asked about slide 13 and tuition. She said she understood that they didn’t 
keep any of the tuition but remitted it to the state and the state used a formula whereby 
providing their budget. She asked what the estimated tuition amount that was remitted to the 
State. Mr. Whiteman said approximately $30 million.   
 
Commissioner Jerrell thanked them and asked if CPCC was considered an open campus. Mr. 
Whiteman said yes.   
 
Commissioner Jerrell asked where they were with security in their budget request. Mr. Whiteman 
said there was a request for seven additional campus officers. He said they wanted to transition 



Meeting Minutes 
May 9, 2023 
 

11 

 

to their own staff for dispatch since they were currently relying primarily on a third-party security 
firm.    
 
Commissioner Jerrell said since he had been on the Board, there had been talks of strengthening 
the partnership between CPCC and CMS. He asked if there were specific goals/metrics they were 
trying to achieve.  Dr. Deitemeyer said they had an extraordinary year with the partnership and 
that she was serving on the CELC Board at the time. She said she would love to have one shared 
position in each school, but they decided as partners to go with 12 and disperse them out among 
the 32 schools, assigning them to one or two schools. She said they needed students to understand 
the process of going to college, and that there were goals in place between the two groups.  
 
Commissioner Griffin thanked them and asked about slide 11, lines 3 and 13, and “funding 
pursuant to NC 115D-32,” a distinction between them and the statutory requirements. Mr. 
Whiteman said the statute stated local support of community colleges was supposed to be given 
by each county. He said the items listed 1-12, were listed almost verbatim to what the County was 
to support. He said line 13 was what the County allocated for wages to compete with other 
entities in the Charlotte market.  
 
Commissioner Griffin said he would like to see alignment from CTE Pathways in high schools, 
going directly into one of CPCC’s 21 pathways, so they’d be coming out to certifications, degrees, 
or back into the job market.  
 
Commissioner Cotham thanked them and asked Dr. Deitemeyer concerning maintenance and air 
filtration systems, what had CPCC done. Dr. Deitemeyer said they had taken care of some of that 
with COVID relief dollars. Mr. Whiteman said during COVID they had spent relief dollars on many 
things such as masks and PPE, but one of the larger expenses was adding ionization to the air 
filters in all buildings. 
 
Commissioner Cotham asked Dr. Deitemeyer, with all of the successes she’s had what was the 
most important to her. Dr. Deitemeyer said every student matters.  
 
Commissioner Meier asked concerning wage and benefits, were they state-mandated salary 
increases. Dr. Deitemeyer said yes, some was required by statute. Mr. Whiteman said as they 
were watching House Bill 259, it included a 4.25% raise for community college employees. He said 
they wanted to make sure they treated all employees the same, including the ones that were 
County funded.  
 
 
 



Meeting Minutes 
May 9, 2023 
 

12 

 

23-0309 MECKLENBURG COUNTY COURT OFFICIALS FY2024 BUDGET REQUEST  
 
The Board received a presentation from Casey Calloway, Trial Court Administrator, highlighting 
the FY2024 budget request from the Mecklenburg County Court Officials. 
  
Background: As part of the development of the FY2024 Recommended Budget, the County 
Manager will consider a funding request from the court officials. Representatives from 
Mecklenburg County Courts will present the court official's budget request to the Board of County 
Commissioners. The court officials budget request includes funding for the District Attorney's 
Office, Public Defender's Office, and the Clerk of Superior Court's Office.  
 

 
 
 
 
 
 



Meeting Minutes 
May 9, 2023 
 

13 

 

 
 



Meeting Minutes 
May 9, 2023 
 

14 

 

 



Meeting Minutes 
May 9, 2023 
 

15 

 

 



Meeting Minutes 
May 9, 2023 
 

16 

 

 



Meeting Minutes 
May 9, 2023 
 

17 

 

 



Meeting Minutes 
May 9, 2023 
 

18 

 

 



Meeting Minutes 
May 9, 2023 
 

19 

 

 



Meeting Minutes 
May 9, 2023 
 

20 

 

 



Meeting Minutes 
May 9, 2023 
 

21 

 

 
 
Comments 
 
Commissioner Rodriguez-McDowell thanked her for the presentation. She asked concerning 
their request in the capital budget for the 7th-floor partial courtroom upfit for $20 million, what 
difference would it make if the item is funded.  Ms. Calloway said that every five years they 
needed an additional courtroom to support operations. She said It would add an additional 
courtroom.  She said the North Carolina Industrial Commission statute requires that our senior 
resident superior court judge provide adequate space for those hearings.  She said they were 
currently held in a former civil courts building, however, they may be displaced due to planned 
renovation. So statutorily, they would be responsible for providing hearing space as well as 
security for those matters and the 7th floor would assist with providing that. 
 
Commissioner Rodriguez-McDowell asked for clarification relating to funding provided by the 
state.   
 
Ms. Calloway said Mecklenburg County received 7% of the Judicial Branch budget based on full-
time and state funding for those positions.  
 
Commissioner Cotham thanked her for the presentation and asked for clarification on using the 
term clearance instead of disposition. Ms. Calloway said that the clearance rate was the number 



Meeting Minutes 
May 9, 2023 
 

22 

 

of dispositions compared with the number of filings over the fiscal year.  
 
Commissioner Altman thanked her and the staff. She asked if the local supplement was higher or 
lower than what they received previously and compared with other judicial districts. Ms. 
Calloway said it was aligned with what they received the previous year and stayed relatively the 
same fluctuating between 16 and 18%. She said the County’s support provided far more than 
other agencies for personnel costs.  
 
Chair Dunlap asked what the County was currently funding and what her overall request was 
figuratively. Ms. Calloway said $1,427,640. 
 
Commissioner Griffin asked if the state provided that type of supplemental funding, or if all 
counties got the same amount across the board. Ms. Calloway said there were serious pay 
parities, and that the AOC (Administrative Office of the Courts) is a unified court system.  She said 
the same salaries are officer to all 100 counties of similar positions regardless of size or cost of 
living.  
 
 
23-0307 CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PLAN UPDATE  
 
The Board received an update on FY24 - FY28 Capital Improvement Plan (CIP).  
 
David Boyd, Chief Financial Officer made the presentation. 
 
Background: This update will include a review of the CIP strategy and timelines, review of the 
proposed CIP funding and authorizations, current departmental submissions, and current CIP 
process next steps. 
 



Meeting Minutes 
May 9, 2023 
 

23 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Meeting Minutes 
May 9, 2023 
 

24 

 

 
 
 
 



Meeting Minutes 
May 9, 2023 
 

25 

 

 
 
 
 



Meeting Minutes 
May 9, 2023 
 

26 

 

 

 



Meeting Minutes 
May 9, 2023 
 

27 

 

 

 

 



Meeting Minutes 
May 9, 2023 
 

28 

 

 

 

 
 



Meeting Minutes 
May 9, 2023 
 

29 

 

 
 



Meeting Minutes 
May 9, 2023 
 

30 

 

 
 



Meeting Minutes 
May 9, 2023 
 

31 

 

 
 



Meeting Minutes 
May 9, 2023 
 

32 

 

 
 



Meeting Minutes 
May 9, 2023 
 

33 

 

 
 



Meeting Minutes 
May 9, 2023 
 

34 

 

 
 



Meeting Minutes 
May 9, 2023 
 

35 

 

 
 



Meeting Minutes 
May 9, 2023 
 

36 

 

 
 



Meeting Minutes 
May 9, 2023 
 

37 

 

 



Meeting Minutes 
May 9, 2023 
 

38 

 

 
 
 
 



Meeting Minutes 
May 9, 2023 
 

39 

 

 
 
 



Meeting Minutes 
May 9, 2023 
 

40 

 

 
 
 
 



Meeting Minutes 
May 9, 2023 
 

41 

 

 
 
 
 



Meeting Minutes 
May 9, 2023 
 

42 

 

 
 
 
 



Meeting Minutes 
May 9, 2023 
 

43 

 

 
 



Meeting Minutes 
May 9, 2023 
 

44 

 

 
 
 
 



Meeting Minutes 
May 9, 2023 
 

45 

 

 
 
 
 



Meeting Minutes 
May 9, 2023 
 

46 

 

 
 
 



Meeting Minutes 
May 9, 2023 
 

47 

 

 
 
 



Meeting Minutes 
May 9, 2023 
 

48 

 

 
 
Comments 
 
Commissioner Rodriguez-McDowell said the only issue she wanted to raise was about timing. 
She was concerned with the flow of how the County was completing CRCs and had a hard time 
with two CRCs being opened in one cycle.  She asked if they could delay one until the rolling CIP 
or the next cycle. She said she wanted to make sure they were not putting their needs in front 
of the partners they had to fund.  
 
Commissioner Jerrell thanked them for the presentation. He said that colleagues across the 
country were always lifting up this model and wanting to duplicate it. He said he wanted to 
understand the sense of urgency of completing two CRCs at the same time. He asked if it was a 
service delivery issue at that point.  Mr. Hahn said it was over 9 years, they were spread out, 
and wasn’t sure if it would make a difference.  
 
Commissioner Jerrell asked County Manager Diorio was the sense of urgency to get employees 
into a space where they could provide better service delivery. He used the example of instead 
of servicing 400 and Valerie C. Woodard, they would be able to spread out throughout the 
County. County Manager Diorio said if they wanted to get the benefits of integrated service 
delivery, there was some urgency around that because she felt they were providing their 
customers with a disservice at the time. She said it was about allowing people who needed 



Meeting Minutes 
May 9, 2023 
 

49 

 

those services to be able to access them in the most effective way they could and in the most 
dignified way they could. She acknowledged that what they were currently doing was neither 
dignified nor respectful.  
 
Commissioner Jerrell asked for the differences between the CRCs in the East and West. Mr. 
Hahn said the Southwest and East ones were being requested so he would compare the two. He 
said the big difference was that the Southwest location had a full large public health clinic, while 
the East location had a medium-sized clinic. He said it was sort of a health neighborhood, 
comparable to the two other CRCs.  
 
Commissioner Jerrell asked about the Billingsley site. He said he thought they were clear on the 
direction they were going with the site, but it seemed to be a question about what was going to 
take place. Mr. Hahn said they were studying the possibility of renovating. County Manager 
Diorio said they were also seeing a significant increase in demand for service, so they needed to 
make sure they could hire people to be able to service the community.  
 
Commissioner Griffin read an excerpt from a document from 2014. He said it was a no-brainer 
to provide these services to customers and creating a delay had been an issue for many years 
and he thought they could move forward. He said he supported the County Manager’s 
recommendation wholeheartedly. 
 
Commissioner Meier asked if they didn’t put one of the CRCs in the CIP, would they have had 
another opportunity the next year. She asked if it would bother the construction/design phase. 
Mr. Hahn said they weren’t being built at the same time, but it would push everything out. 
County Manager Diorio said it would push out the Northwest location significantly.  
 
Commissioner Meier asked if they could break it up. Mr. Boyd said they were not paying for it 
all at one time. He said they were only showing the projects that would start during that CIP 
window.  
 
Commissioner Altman said one-third of the County’s one million residents, over 300,000 used 
health and human services. She said health and human services was their core obligation. She 
said she felt as if that was the answer to that holistic and global approach to some of their 
complex societal problems.  
 
Motion was made by Commissioner Jerrell, seconded by Commissioner Meier, and unanimously 
carried (7-0) to extend the meeting by 30 minutes.  
 
Commissioner Cotham thanked them and said they needed to build the new CRCs as fast as 



Meeting Minutes 
May 9, 2023 
 

50 

 

they could.  
 
Chair Dunlap said he couldn’t imagine delaying one of the CRCs. 
 
Chair Dunlap asked if at the June 6th regular meeting, they would be dealing with only CMS 
bonds. Mr. Boyd said that was correct. 
 
Chair Dunlap said his colleagues would then have to decide how much of a request they wanted 
to put before the community. He reiterated the suggestion of $2.5 billion being the max, and 
the Board would have to decide if they were requesting that amount or a lower amount. 
 
Commissioner Meier asked when the last time they raised taxes or went revenue neutral. 
County Manager Diorio said in 2019 for the FY20 Budget. She said there was a 1.99 cents tax 
increase over revenue neutral.  
 
Commissioner Meier asked when the last time was prior to 2019. County Manager Diorio said 
they had raised taxes three times since she had been Manager. 
 
Commissioner Cotham asked if there was an update on the $356 million not spent by CMS. Mr. 
Boyd said there was probably around $300 million. He said all the bonds had been issued, and 
projects were underway. He said the money hadn’t been paid out but had been spoken for. 
 
Commissioner Cotham asked how much homeowners’ insurance would increase. She asked for 
real examples of what their monthly mortgage would look like. Mr. Boyd said the revaluation 
wouldn’t have a direct impact on insurance rates.  
 
Chair Dunlap said the County Manager would present her recommendation on the 18th, which 
included what would have been her proposed tax rate based on what she recommended.  
 
 
23-0018 COMMISSIONER REPORTS 
 
Commissioners shared information of their choosing within the guidelines as established by the 
Board, which included, but not limited to, past and/or upcoming events. 
 
 
 
 
 



Meeting Minutes 
May 9, 2023 
 

51 

 

ADJOURNMENT 
 
With no further business to come before the Board, Chair Dunlap declared the meeting 
adjourned at 5:24 p.m. 
 
 
 
 
______________________________ ____________________________ 
Arlissa Eason, Deputy Clerk to the Board George Dunlap, Chairman 
 
 


